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Vision

To become the service provider of choice in the express and logistics industry, delivering pioneering technological

solutions by flexibly responding to evolving customer needs.

Mission

We are committed to providing exceptional customized solutions to meet our client’s unique logistics challenges and
customer care. We tackle each challenge in a multifaceted way using creativity, logic, technology and technical
expertise to provide the most innovative, cost-effective logistical and specialized supply chain solutions. We aim to
be the leading express services provider in Pakistan with a focus on expanding and strengthening our operational

network.
Values

Committed to Customer

We are committed toward providing a delighted customer service experience to build long-lasting relationships with

our customers.

Innovation

We focused toward architectural innovation to address the evolving customer needs
Integrity

We upholds the highest standards of integrity in all our actions

Team Work

We work together across different communities to meet the need of our customers and to help the company wins.

Transparency

We encourage a culture of open dialogue and sharing and embraces transparency among all our processes

Respect

We value our people, our community and customers are at the core of everything we do.
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Code of Conduct

“Guiding you to make the right decisions.”

Commitment to the code is a shared framework of professional responsibility that affirms our pledge to the core

values of our organization and therefore its compliance is obligatory.

Compliance with the rules and regulations

All employees are bound to comply with the rules and regulation of the organization; all actions should be within the
parameters of the rules and regulations. Any action against the guidelines should be reported to concern

Manager/Head of HR or one can refer to the Whistleblowing Policy in our Employee Handbook.

Safe, Secure and Healthy Working Conditions

We are committed to providing safe and healthy working conditions at all our premises. Safety and health are
paramount in all business decisions and must be an integral part of our culture. It is the duty of every employee to

follow the safety & health guidelines.

Anti-bribery and Corruption

We are committed to implementing fair and ethical business practices, and avoiding corruption of all kinds, including
bribery, commission, kickbacks or any malpractices from the vendors, suppliers or within the organization with any

staff member. The company, its employees and anyone acting on our behalf, must abide and follow.

Business Gifts and Entertainment

Business gifts, entertainment and hospitality on a modest scale are commonly used to build goodwill. However, Blue
EX forbids any unethical gifts, entertainment or hospitality. The limitation of gift acceptance is clearly mentioned in

the business, gifts and entertainment policy in our Employee Handbook.

Equality and Fair Treatment

We commit to ensuring fair treatment for all employees based on merit in our process and procedures. We
continuously strive to promote a work environment that is free of harassment, bullying and abusive conduct —
whether physical, verbal or visual. Every employee is bound to follow the equality and fair treatment guidelines

provided in HR manual.
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Company Assets and Information

We act with integrity and responsible to prevent the misuse or loss of company resources and assets by being
cautions and alert in our work. We treat company’s information as one of the most valued assets and handle
confidential and sensitive information with utmost care which includes software, logos, letterheads, laptops, visiting

cards, uniforms or any other material that is company’s property.

Conflict of Interest

Acting with integrity requires being free from conflicts of interest in all decision making. A conflict of interest occurs
whenever the prospect of direct or indirect personal gain may influence our judgement or actions while conducting
company business. We expect our employees to uphold the letter and spirit of our code of conduct in all their
dealings and abide by the guidelines mentioned within. To this effect, willful violations of the code shall result in

appropriate and just disciplinary action.

Social Media/Internet Community

At Blue EX, we understand that social media can be fun and rewarding way to share your opinions with co-workers.
In particular, uploading, posting, forwarding or posting a link to any of the following types of material on a social

media website such as our logos, a false defamatory statement about any person or organization or any material.

Attendance & Punctuality

All employees are bound to comply with the rules of attendance and punctuality. Employees should be at their work

station by the start of each workday at the time designated by the department.

Uniform & Presentation

Employees should always be dressed neatly and appropriately for the type of work they perform. This includes
wearing appropriate uniforms, footwear and the identification of badges/cards. Avoid using abusive language and

smoking, chewing of pan, gutka or drugs inside the office.

Harassment

We do not tolerate harassment in the workplace. This applies whether the person being harassed or doing the
harassing to employee or a non-employee. Harassment involves a pattern of abusive and degrading conduct (such as

verbal abuse, sexually explicit or derogatory comments or images, mimicry, unwanted touching, or lewd or offensive
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gestures, bullying or jokes) Such harassment can occur in or outside the office, or through social media which should

be reported on immediate basis.

CONCLUSION

We are committed to a supportive work environment, where employees have the opportunity to reach their fullest
potential. Blue EX is expected to do their utmost to create a workplace culture that is free of harassment,
intimidation, bias, and unlawful discrimination. In the case of non-compliance with this Code, BLUE EX shall have the

right and/or obligation to take disciplinary action, including but not limited to one or more of the following actions:

e Warnings (verbal and/or written).

e Termination of employment/services.
e Financial penalties.

e Declaration to regulators.

e Legal action and/or lawsuits.

The level and type of disciplinary action is driven by the non- compliance’s nature, scope, intent and materiality of

potential consequences.
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UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Universal Network Systems Limited
(“Company”) will be held on Friday, October 28, 2022 at 04:00 p.m. at the registered office of the Company situated
at Plot # 5, Banglore Town, Near Awami Markaz, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi Pakistan, and through video link facility
to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June
30, 2022 together with the Auditors’ and Directors’ Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report.

In accordance with Section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, the financial statements of the Company have been
uploaded on the Company’s website which can be downloaded from the link: https://www.blue-
ex.com/corporate/financial-report

2. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2023 and to fix their remuneration. The present Auditors,
M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible offer themselves for
re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit, amend the Articles of Association of the Company to bring the same in line
with current industry standards and the existing laws of Pakistan, subject to obtaining all necessary
regulatory approvals, and in that connection to pass the following resolutions with or without modification
as special resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company, as proposed by the
Directors be and are hereby approved, subject to any modifications as may be required by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the fulfilment of all formalities / procedures required under
applicable laws.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company be and
are hereby, singly authorized and empowered to do all acts, deeds and things, take any or all necessary
actions, including to complete all legal formalities and file all necessary documents, as may be necessary
or incidental for the purpose of implementing the aforesaid resolution, as well as carry out any other act
or step which may be ancillary and / or incidental to do the above and necessary to fully achieve the
objects of the aforesaid resolutions."

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

4. Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

Attached to this notice is the Statement of Material Facts covering the above mentioned Special Business, as
required under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding comparative statement of changes in Articles
of Association is annexed to the notice of AGM sent to the shareholders.

By Order of the Board

Ahsan Iqgbal
Company Secretary
Karachi, October 07, 2022



Notes:

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books:
The Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, October 22, 2022 to Friday, October 28,
2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar, Messrs.
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-
74400, by close of business on Friday, October 21, 2022, will be considered in time to attend and vote at the
AGM.

2. Participation in the Meeting:
All members of the Company are entitled to attend the meeting and vote there at through Proxy. A proxy duly
appointed shall have such rights as respect to the speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a
member. Duly filled and signed Proxy Form must be received at the Registrar of the Company Messrs. CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.
Pakistan, or at the registered address of the Company i.e. Karachi Plot # 5, Banglore Town, Near Awami Markaz,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

An individual beneficial owner of shares must bring his / her original CNIC or Passport, Account and Participant’s
I.D. numbers to prove his / her identity. A representative of corporate members, must bring the Board of
Directors’ Resolution and / or Power of Attorney and the specimen signature of the nominee. CDC account
holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

3. Participation through video link facility
In order to facilitate members to attend and participate in the general meeting through video link facility,
Members are required to register their particulars by sending an email at ahsan.igbal@blue-ex.com. The
Members registering to connect through video-link facility are required to mention their Name, Folio Number,
CNIC and Number of Shares held in their name in the email with subject ‘Registration for UNSL’s AGM. Video
link and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emails, containing all the required particulars,
are received at the given email address at least 24 hours before the time of the AGM. The Members can also
send their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM on the email address mentioned above.

4. Postal Ballot and E-voting:
Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 for the purpose of election of directors and for any
other agenda item subject to the requirements of sections 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017, members
will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that is voting by post or through any electronic
mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedure contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

5. Consent for Video Conference Facility:
Pursuant to Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, Members may avail video conference facility for this AGM,
provided the Company receives consent from the members residing in a city holding aggregate 10% or more
shareholding at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting.

In this regard, please send a duly signed request as per the following format at the Registered Office of the
Company within prescribed timeline.



I/ We, of being a member of Universal
Network Systems Limited holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Folio / CDC
Account No. hereby opt for video conference facility at

Signature of member

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conferencing facility at least 5 days before the date
of Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

6. Electronic Transmission of Annual Report 2022:

In compliance with section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company has electronically transmitted the
Annual Report 2022 through email to shareholders whose email addresses are available with the Company’s
Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. However, in cases, where email addresses are not
available with the Company’s Share Registrar, printed copies of the notices of AGM along-with the web link to
download the Annual Report 2022 (containing the financial statements), have been dispatched.

Notwithstanding the above, the Company will provide hard copies of the Annual Report 2022, to any Member
on their request, at their registered address, free of cost, within one (1) week of receiving such request.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 RELATING TO THE
SPECIAL BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF EXISTING AND PROPOSED CLAUSES OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF UNIVERSAL

NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED

Existing

Proposed

45. The remuneration of the directors shall from time
to time be determined by the company in general
meeting subject to the provisions of the Act.

45. The remuneration of the directors shall from time
to time be determined by the company in Board
meeting subject to the provisions of the Act.

61. A copy of the draft minutes of meeting of board of
directors shall be furnished to every director within
seven working days of the date of the meeting.

61. A copy of the draft minutes of meeting of Board
shall be furnished to every director within fourteen
days of the date of meeting.
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of the company together with the audited
financial statements for the financial year ended June 30, 2022.

Economy Review

Pakistan’s economy continued to demonstrate cycles of boom and bust. Impressive GDP growth rate of
almost 6% was overshadowed by ballooning twin fiscal and current account deficits towards the end of
financial year 2021-22. Political instability, high international fuel & commodity prices and bludgeoning
trade deficit exerted immense pressure on foreign exchange reserves resulting in significant depreciation
of PKR against USD which in turn contributed towards high inflation. Recent steps by the government such
as partial withdrawal of fuel subsidies and commitment for gradual withdrawal of subsidies on electricity
& other utilities are expected to revive the IMF program which is critical to bring back the confidence in
Pakistan’s economy.

The online market size of e-commerce for domestic consumers is still growing and as per Statista, at an
average CAGR of 6%, it is anticipated to reach over USD 9 billion by 2025. However, the higher cost of doing
business, fiscal challenges and battered infrastructure has created numerous issues for logistics industry.
The overall growth of e-commerce market is encouraging and is ecpected to continue in the coming years
due to an average buyer age of around 28 — 35 years with more dependance on latest technologies.

Sector Review

During the last 2 years of pandemic & post-pandemic situation, sensing the high potential growth of online
businesses in Pakistan, a large number of companies have ventured into the e-commerce courier business
using either venture capital or private equity-based funds. Those new entrants immediately started
burning the equity they raised by starting an untenable price war to create space for themselves which
made a temporary impact on business dynamics for existing companies. The increased competition not
only resulted in a price war on service charges but coupled with the increases in fuel costs led to a
significant increase in resource costs over the last year which put immense pressure on running expenses.

The Logistics & Courier Services Sector is highly dependent on external cost-based fundamentals and unlike
other sectors cannot immediately pass on any price/inflation impact to its customers. Therefore, after
surviving the covid-19 pandemic effects, there was hope that from 2022 onward, it will be a smoother
journey for the sector in general. However, the Russia Ukraine war plus political instability in Pakistan, USD
to PKR steep increase, exorbitant increase in fuel, electricity and overall super-inflation in the domestic
economy which peaked to 25%, highest since 2008, resulted in a huge increase in overall costs. The
uncertainty in these economic indicators would remain during the next six to 12 months and impact the
already very fine margins of the sector.

The Company strived with a prudent approach to address all those fundamental implications on its business
whilst ensuring that quality of service was not compromised. Even the company’s customers, realized that
price was not the only economic benefit to look at and having seen low quality service provision by
competitors, chose to move back to companies like UNSL for a higher quality of services, wider
geographical reach and technological edge.

One of the most important factors which distinguishes UNSL from other companies in the sector and the
reason why it is in a significantly better position than its competitors is the diversification of business lines
into international markets. UNSL’s IATA Certification and International Freight Business and its
International Express Courier Business alliance with Aramex LLC, the Dubai listed international courier
company, provides a sustainable growth trajectory for the company in the mid to long term. Having a
significant alliance with Aramex provides the Company with a big opportunity to take its domestic e-
commerce customers to international markets, providing them a full roundup of services that help in



building new businesses and allows UNSL better volumes and margins. The company has maintained its
focus on the international segment and has been able to grow its international business despite the
domestic pressures mentioned above. Seeing the potential in this segment the company is renewing focus
on new geographies and sectors and is looking into a potential partnership in Nepal to setup a new logistics
entity.

Overall, the business revenue and expenses remained stable despite all kinds of unprecedented events
during the last 6 months which is demonstrated by the Company’s Earnings before Income Tax,
Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) for 2022 and 2021.

2022 2021
Earnings 1,134,885,072 | 1,009,869,014
Expenses 1,068,779,172 | 939,153,279
EBITDA 66,105,900 70,715,735

Company Performance

During the year 2021-22 profit after tax stood at Rs. 15.95 million as compared to Rs.33.22 million reported

last year.

The brief summary of the financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 is as under:

2022 2021

Courier and allied services
- Income 1,028,519,073 | 960,482,394
- CBC handling charges income 23,677,827 25,657,978
- Cost of sales (949,271,679) | (854,244,718)
Total courier and allied services 102,925,221 131,895,654
International freight 46,931,273 4,567,551
Commission income 1,017,607 1,740,347
150,874,101 | 138,203,552
General and administrative expenses (131,638,292) | (86,115,471)
Marketing and selling expenses (4,564,750) (3,482,125)
(136,203,042) | (89,597,596)
Operating profit 14,671,059 48,605,956
Other income 16,894,121 2,025,326
Finance costs (7,821,861) | (12,526,769)
9,072,260 | (10,501,443)
Profit before taxation 23,743,319 38,104,513
Taxation (7,797,663) (4,883,966)
Profit after tax 15,945,656 33,220,547
(Restated)
Earning per share - basic & diluted 0.65 1.35

Earnings per Share

During the year the company posted earnings per share of Rs. 0.65 compared to Rs. 1.35 (restated) last

year.




Appropriation
The Company’s profit after tax for the year ended June 30, 2022 stood at Rs.15.95 million compared to Rs.
33.22 million last year.

Objectives and Corporate Strategy

We are committed to mounting good asset quality portfolio and continuously build the Company at sound
footing with diversified pool of income stream. The key elements of our corporate strategy have been to
effectively employ available resources and maximize profitability while managing and mitigating related
risks.

The Company is following up to explore local e-ecommerce segment with better services, adding new
products and a much wider reach to provide sound and satisfactory services to its customers. Further, it is
more focused and aimed towards international segment with Aramex for capturing a larger market share
for both inbound and outbound services.

Liquidity, Cash Flows and financing arrangement

The Company has an effective cash management system, powered by a team of dedicated and competent
employees, preparing forecasts and regularly monitoring Company’s cash needs. Inflows and outflows of
cash and other liquid assets, including investments, are managed on net adjusted return basis.

Capital Structure

In the current year the Company has issued shares in IPO which increased paid-up capital of the Company
to Rs. 274 million. Shareholders’ fund at the year-end totaled Rs. 785.8 million. The liquidity position of the
Company remains strong with a year-end current ratio of 4.

Risk management & Strategy for Mitigating Risks
Company also manages a portfolio of short-term investments, made after thorough financial evaluation.
The credit risk in short term investments is minimized through diversification in investments among highly
rated money market mutual funds. Short term investments include highly rated money market mutual
funds and certain A rated musharika investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Company’s
credit risk mainly arises from deposits with banks, loan to employees, Investments in mutual funds and
trade and other receivables. For banks and financial institutions, management keeps deposits with
reputed institutions. For investment in mutual funds, management keeps surplus funds in high rated
mutual funds. Credit risk on account of dividend receivable is minimal due to the statutory protection. The
risk of default in these transactions is considered minimal due to inherent systematic measures taken
therein. Further, risk of investment in mutual funds is also minimal as Company is exposed to high rated
money market funds for liquidity management.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimizing the return. However, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk and equity price risk.

The Company is exposed to market risk with respect to its investments, long term loans, short term
deposits and bank balances. The Company limits market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by
continuous monitoring of developments in the equity market. The market risks associated with the
Company’s business activities are interest rate risk and price risk. The Company is not exposed to material
currency risk.



Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to risk from foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognizes and respects the rights of each and every stakeholder including shareholders,
employees, creditors, local communities and others. The Company encourages active participation of
shareholders in all general meetings of the Company and values their views towards better governance
and operational management. The Company is also aware of its legal and constructive obligations towards
its stakeholders where it operates and takes proper actions to timely respond to their expectations after
taking into account a realistic view of their interests associated with the Company.

Information Technology

We strongly believe that future of logistics & courier sector is highly linked to the best use of technological
advancement. The Company is well invested in developing newer solutions for its external and internal
users to achieve better market share, for better work experience and implementations of sound
techniques for controls of risks. This focus on better technological solutions which have become
benchmark for industry, the operational capabilities of the Company continuously improve with much
effective internal controls and management information system.

Human Resources Development & Succession Planning

The business model of the Company is human resource intensive. The Company has employed
experienced and qualified human resources to meet the challenges ahead. Company also plans to
strengthen its team, use employee performance evaluation methods and benchmark surveys to further
strengthen organization structure and effectiveness.

The Company not only attracts the best talent but also grooms and develops their abilities for future
leadership roles. The Company believes in empowering employees by providing them with challenging
opportunities to enhance their potential and develop their abilities. Clear roles and job descriptions are
defined, based on which, succession plan will be prepared for sensitive and critical positions in the
Company.

Internal Control

The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an outsource partner (KPMG)
for Internal Audit function which is independent of the External Audit function. The Company’s system of
internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness and adequacy. The
Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial
reporting and control objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders’ wealth
at all levels within the Company.

The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the Audit Plan defined by the Board Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taking appropriate action
or bringing the matters to the Board’s attention where required. Coordination between the External and
Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the Company’s objectives,
including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

Energy Conservation
The Company’s energy conversation measures include usage of LEDs all around the Company areas and
shutting down auxiliaries and equipment’s wherever possible.



Occupational Health, Safety & Environment Protection

We are committed to achieve excellence in health, safety and environment across our business. The
Company maintains a safe working environment and takes responsibility for the health and wellbeing of
its staff and stakeholders.

Corporate Relations

Corporate relations promote efficiency, productivity and decent work. Indeed, a participative and
mutually respecting relations, advance cooperation, enhance productivity and promote trust thereby
reducing dislike and exploitation. During the year recreational and motivational activities in the form of
football matches were organized with other institutions.

Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption Measures

It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accordance
with the highest ethical and legal standards. Unethical practices of any sort are not to find their way into
our business. All employees must act at all times in the interest of Company’s shareholders and no
employee shall ever commit an illegal or an unethical act, or instruct and encourage another employee to
do so.

The Company has communicated the Code of Conduct to all its directors and employees and has also
placed it on its website.

Related Party Transactions

During the year, all transactions made with associated companies/related parties were duly recommended
by Board’s Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. All transactions with
related parties are on arm’s length basis.

Board of Directors
The total numbers of Directors are seven (07) as per the following:

a. Male: 05
b. Female: 02

The composition of board is as follows:

Category Names

Non-executive Directors Arif Elahi
Safina Danish Elahi

Independent Directors Mirza Qamar Beg
Nadine Malik Almani
Asfandyar Farrukh

Executive Directors Imran Baxamoosa
Ali Aamer Baxamoosa

Female Directors Safina Danish Elahi
Nadine Malik Almani

Conflict of Interest among BOD Members
Any conflict of interest is managed as per provisions of the Company’s Code of Conduct for Directors, Acts,
and rules and regulations of SECP and Pakistan Stock Exchange.



CEO Performance Review

The Board continuously review performance of the CEO against pre-determined operational and strategic
goals. The Board adopts the monitoring role, giving full authority to the CEO to manage the Company,
implement strategic decisions and policies of the Board and align the Company’s direction.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The remuneration of the directors shall from time to time be determined by the company in accordance
with the articles of association and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

Directors’ Training Program

All seven directors have a minimum of fourteen years of education. All the directors have obtained
certification under the directors’ training program stipulated in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 except one director whose director training program is in progress at PICG.

Board Meetings

During the year under review, five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held, which were presided
over by the Chairman. The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary also attended the meetings
required by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. Attendance by each
director was as follows:

Name of Director No. of meetings | No. of meetings
held attended

Arif Elahi (Chairman / Director) 5 4

Mrs. Safina Danish Elahi (Director) 5 5

Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg (Director) 5 5

Mrs. Nadine Malik Almani (Director) 5 4

Mr. Asfandyar Farrukh (Director) 5 5

Mr. Imran Baxamoosa (CEO/Director) 5 5

Mr. Ali Aamer Baxamoosa (Director) 5 5

Board Audit Committee Meetings

Name of Member No. of No. of meetings
meetings held | attended

Mirza Qamar Beg (Chairman) 2 2

Arif Elahi (Member) 2 1

Nadine Malik Almani (Member) 2 2

Asfandyar Farrukh (Member) 2 2

Board HR & Remuneration Committee Meetings

Name of Member No. of meetings | No. of meetings
held attended

Nadine Malik Almani (Chairperson) 1

Safina Danish Elahi (Member) 1 1

Imran Baxamoosa (Member) 1 1




Code of Conduct

The board of directors adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and for employees and the same has
been circulated to board members and employees in terms of requirement of the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The code of conduct is also placed at the company’s website.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
a)  The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its State of
Affairs, the Results of its Operations, Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity.

b)  The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under the Companies Act, 2017.

c) The Company has followed consistent and appropriate accounting policies in the preparation of the
financial statements. All changes, wherever made during the year have been adequately disclosed
and accounting estimates are on the basis of prudent and reasonable judgment.

d)  The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in the preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

f) The fundamentals of the Company are strong and it has the ability to continue as a going concern
free from uncertainties.

g)  The Company has followed the best practices of the Corporate Governance as laid down in the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and there has been no
material departure there from.

h)  There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are
outstanding except in the ordinary course of business and described in the financial statements.

i) The fair value of investments of the Provident Fund as maintained by the Company disclosed in
accounts as on June 30, 2022 is Rs. 12.83 million.

i) All of the company directors are Certified Directors under Directors’ Training Program (DTP) from
approved institutes as prescribed by SECP except one director whose DTP course is in progress.

Ownership
As at June 30, 2022, there were 399 shareholders on the record of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of Shareholding of the Company as at June 30, 2022, along with pattern of shareholding of
certain classes of shareholders whose disclosure is required under the reporting framework is shown in the
shareholding section of this report.

Auditors

The present auditors M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants being eligible, has
provided their consent for appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit Committee
has recommended the appointment of M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2023. The Board has endorsed this
recommendation.



Key operating and financial data
A Statement summarizing the key financial and operating data for the last five years along with the current
year is included in the report.

Forward Looking Information

Pakistan’s economy is on track with CPEC turning from a dream to reality, Pakistan has attained serious
attention from the world at large. There is optimism within the business community and overall improved
economic activity. The Company is actively undertaking portfolio management business and corporate
finance advisory business and the outlook is positive. The management team under its CEO is fully
committed to deliver a superior risk adjusted return to the shareholders.

Acknowledgement

We would like to thank all our stakeholders, especially our valued investors, who have placed their
confidence in us and also appreciate the efforts put in by the management team for their unswerving
commitment and hard work. The Board would also like to place its appreciation for the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, State Bank of Pakistan and the management of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange for their continued support and cooperation.

On behalf of the Board

— QA Jpamey

Arif Elahi Imran Baxamoosa
Chairman CEO

Karachi: October 05, 2022



Chairman’s Review

We are pleased to present the first Annual Report of Universal Network Systems Limited for the year
ended June 30, 2022 after becoming a public listed courier company on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
(PSX).

The momentous achievement for the Company during the year was its successful public listing of shares
on PSX in December 2021 and it got a significant response from stakeholders. The shares were
oversubscribed 1.6x of asking value. The transition of the company to a public listed company is quite
successful and during the year, the Board of Directors of Universal Network Systems Limited performed
its duties diligently and in conformity with the Companies Act 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange, where the
Company is listed.

The Board and management are engaged and focused upon devising the best possible strategies to
address the current economic challenges and enhance efficiency for key business drivers to achieve key
milestones. The Board is fully conversant with operational & reputational risks affecting current business
scenario and addressing all significant issues through itself or its committees to strengthen and formalize
the corporate decision-making process for better results for its shareholders and other stakeholders in
the coming years.

Going ahead, your Board is hopeful that it’s focused approach and best business practices shall help in
addressing the current business and economic environment on both domestic and international segments
in coming periods. The Company’s inherent strength and in its strong management’s multi-thronged
approach were able to mitigate the impact of international inflationary pressures, post Covid-19 supply
chain disruptions, recent floods in our country and the price war in the courier business especially by the
new competitors. | have however advised the management to be more cautious and vigilant in curtailing
non-operational expenses especially in these trying times.

| would like to conclude by extending my gratitude to the regulators for their support in making UNSL the

first public listed company in courier segment and thanks to Board, management team and entire staff of
the Company for their untiring efforts & contribution in the Company’s endeavors.

Qe

Arif Elahi
Chairman

Karachi: October 05, 2022



OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS (SIX YEARS SUMMARY)

DU WN

DUV WN

DU WN

PARTICULARS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Paid Up Capital
Shareholders Equity
No. of Ordinary Shares

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Sales Value

Gross Profit / (Loss)

Finance Cost

Operating Profit / (Loss)
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

RATIO ANALYSIS

Gross Profit / (Loss)

Net Profit / (Loss)

Return on Equity

Return on Capital Employeed
Current Ratio

Quick / Acid Test Ratio
Earning / (Loss) Per Share
(2017 - 2020 face value Rs. 100/-)
Fixed Asset Turnover

Asset Turnover

Break Up Value

Debt to equity ratio (Gearing)
Debt ratio

Interest coverage ratio
Debtors Turnover

Creditors Turnover

Price Earning Ratio

OTHERS

Capital Expenditure

UNIT

Rs. In (000)
Rs. In (000)
Rs. In (000)
Rs. In (000)
Rs. In (000)
In (000)

Rs. In (000)
s. In (000)
s. In (000)
s. In (000)
s. In (000)
s. In (000)

o X X0 X0 0

Rs. In (000)
s. In (000)
s. In (000)

o X

%
%
%
%
Time
Time

Rs.
Time
Time

Rs.
Time
Time
Time
Days
Days
Time

Rs. In (000)

2017

348,729
280,989
275,969
5,714
68,452
57

542,242
99,713
2,106
26,647
24,541
21,856

33,755
(16,594)
42,972

18.39%
4.03%
62.40%
38.93%
1.02
0.85

382.47
8.36
1.90

1,197.90
0.49
0.33

17.53
100.97
110.40

20,977

2018

350,237
273,082
276,234
5,714
68,797
57

741,115
85,076
3,113
15,109
11,996
345

(56,967)
(21,946)
(1,713)

11.48%
0.05%
0.50%

21.96%

0.99
0.78

6.04
10.23
2.12
1,203.94
1.10
0.52
7.95
94.81
82.97

25,495

2019

392,545
317,793
309,819
5,714
76,293
57

516,978
120,458
8,355
33,142
24,787
7,496

31,572
(8,765)
(3,572)

23.30%
1.45%
10.33%
43.44%
1.03
0.80

131.19
6.81
1.39

1,335.13
0.64
0.39
5.23

155.78

126.96

13,257

2020

453,758
357,120
364,512
5,714
78,301
57

786,114
107,360
10,738
22,601
11,863
2,007

(10,175)
(33,035)
4,603

13.66%
0.26%
2.60%

28.86%

0.98
0.80

35.13
9.17
1.86

1,370.26
1.17
0.54
3.09

120.86
88.06

16,631

2021

747,306
511,725
279,200
205,714
412,244

24,686

992,448
138,204
12,527
50,631
38,105
33,221

49,321
(58,426)
162,410

13.93%
3.35%
13.54%
12.28%
1.83
1.57

1.35
5.97
1.65
20.04
0.15
0.13
6.65
118.26
88.15

23,392

2022

1,029,216
729,279
205,616
274,284
785,802

24,667

1,100,146
150,874
7,822
31,565
23,743
15,946

(120,835)
(95,715)
334,196

13.71%
1.45%
2.66%
4.02%

3.55
3.16

0.65
4.11
1.24
28.65
0.07
0.06
9.45
135.63
78.34
75.78

70,895



STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND DISTRIBUTION

(Rs. In 000)

Wealth Generated
Total revenue
Wealth Distributed
To Services
Cost of revenue (excluding employees' salaries

and benefits)

Administration & other expenses (excluding
employees' salaries and benefits)

To Providers of Capital
Mark-up / interest expense

To Government
Taxes

To Employees Salaries and benefits

Retained in the Business

2022
Rs.

1,117,040

657,534

66,745

7,822

7,798

361,196

15,946

1,117,040

%

100.00%

58.86%

5.98%

0.70%

0.70%

32.34%

1.43%

100.00%

2021
Rs.

994,474

654,866

47,877

12,527

4,884

241,099

33,221

994,474

%

100.00%

65.85%

4.81%

1.26%

0.49%

24.24%

3.34%

100.00%
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Independent Auditor's Review Repurt '

To the Members of Universal Network Systems Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the ‘Regulations’) prepared by Board of Directors of
Univereal Network Systeme Limited (the ‘Company’), for the period from December 06, 2021
to June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to cunsider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, ite related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recurmmendation of the Audit Committee, We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflact the Company’'s compliance for and on
behalf of the Company, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the

Regulations as applicable to the Company for the period from December 06, 2021 to June 30,
2022,

I‘ M
(if;'ﬁ'lf 1Ty []L'L ~
c

we Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

UDIN: CR202210207P5JM1LXNr



Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022*

* Universal Network Systems Limited got listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on December 06, 2021. Hence,
this Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 relates to
period from December 06, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are seven (07) as per the following;:

a. Male: 05
b. Female: 02

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Category Names
Non-executive Directors Arif Elahi
Safina Danish Elahi
Independent Directors Mirza Qamar Beg
Nadine Malik Almani
Asfandyar Farrukh
Executive Directors Imran Baxamoosa

Ali Aamer Baxamoosa

Female Director Safina Danish Elahi
Nadine Malik Almani

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Act and these Regulations;



10.

11.

12.

b)

13.

14.

15.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The company is compliant in respect of certification of all directors under the Director’s
Training program (DTP) except one director whose DTP course is in progress at PICG ;

The Board has approved appointment of company secretary and head of internal audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Name Designation Category

Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Arif Elahi Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Asafandyar Farrukh Member Independent Director
Ms. Nadine Malik Almani  Member Independent Director

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Name Designation Category

Ms. Nadine Malik Almani  Chairperson Independent Director
Ms. Safina Danish Elahi Member Non-Executive Director
Mr. Imran Baxamoosa Member Executive Director

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per
following:

Audit Committee: 02 meetings held during the year ended on June 30, 2022.
HR and Remuneration Committee: 01 meeting held during the year ended on June 30,
2022.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function managed by a suitably qualified
and experienced professional who is conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Company;



16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children)
of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the

Regulations have been complied with.

Arif Elahi
Chairman

Karachi: October 05, 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Universal Network Systems Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of the Universal Network Systems Limited
(the Company) which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 20, 2022 and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows for the period ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the profit and loss statement, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of its profit
and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended.

- Basis for Opinion

We conducled vur audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Cude) and we have fulflled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters;

S.No

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

01

Revonue Recognition

Refer gross revenue under the profit or loss
slatement

The Company has recognized the revenue
amounting Rs 1,100.146 million during the year
ended June 30, 2022.

The Company's revenue stream is derived from
mufltiple sources out of which major key streams
include courier and allied services and
international freight. Each stream has its own
revenue recognition policies based on the nature
of the revenue and underlying contractual
arrangement.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter as it is one of the key performance
indicators uf the Cumpany and because of the
potential risk that revenue transactions may not

be appropriately recorder and disclosed in the
financial etatements,

Our audit procedures included the
following:

QObtained an understanding.
evaluated the design and tested the
controls over the process of
capturing, processing and recording
of revenue:

Assessed the appropriateness of
the Company's accounting policy for
recording of revenue in line with
requirements of applicable
accounting and reporting standards;

Perferming teets of control to
confirm our understanding of the
process by which revenue is
calculated.

Compare, on a sample basis,
specific revenuea transactione
recorded before and after the
reporting date with underlying
documentation to assess whether
revenue has been recognized in the
appropriate accounting pariod

Evaluated the appropriateness of
the disclosures provided under the
revenue standard IFRS-15 and
assessed the completeness and
mathematical accuracy of the
relevant disclosures

(e
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordanece with the accounting and reporting etandarde ae applicable in Pakistan and the

requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material migstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management ie reeponsible for asseesing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of diractors ara responsible for averseaing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaiements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggragate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judament and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

s |Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement rasulting from fraud is
higher then for one resulting from error, as fraud may invulve cullusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal cantrol,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a gaing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exiete,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

If
e (¢
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease fo
continue as a going concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

<)

d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of aceount and
returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of
1980),

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Imran

Ehaikh.

Ju\.( iy /ﬁy

uin Chaudhury & Co.

Chsrtared Aeccountante

KnrachIU 6 OCT 2022

Date:

UDIN Number: AR202210207cEITvR35M



UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Right of use assets
Long term deposits

Current assets

Trade debts

Packaging material

Short term loans and advances

Short term deposits, prepayments and advance income tax
Tax refund due from Government

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

Share capital and Reserves

Authorized
50,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

27,428,430 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

(2021: 20,571,430 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each)
fully paid in cash

Share Premium

Revaluation surplus on property, plant & equipment
Sponsors' loan

Unappropriated profit

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities - net

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Accrued mark-up

Current portion lease liabilities
Provision for taxation

Contingencies and Commitments

Note

NGO U» H~

11
12

13

14
15

16

14
23

17

2022 2021

---------- Rupees-----------
155,333,920 105,158,980
83,229,223 59,133,150
48,627,045 60,043,079
12,746,728 11,245,728
299,936,916 235,580,937
455,744,899 361,855,656
2,101,092 2,662,889
21,440,805 8,740,884
35,043,921 39,667,316
20,483,731 21,979,070

131,686,290 -
62,778,606 76,819,150
729,279,343 511,724,965

1,029,216,258

747,305,902

500,000,000 500,000,000
274,284,300 || 205,714,300
402,328,868 43,286,074
23,044,649 27,845,460

- 70,000,000
86,144,583 65,398,115
785,802,400 412,243,950
25,298,396 39,456,951
12,499,107 16,405,413
37,797,503 55,862,364
165,764,385 || 241,727,500
- 2,434,610

- 57,587
25,867,487 22,187,718
13,984,475 12,792,175
205,616,347 279,199,590
1,029,216,258 747,305,902

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

%V’Hﬂ»«f

Chief E‘;:ec I.It.l'H'é Officer

Chief I'-Tnanr_ilal Officer

and

Director



UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Courier and allied services
- Courier income
- CBC handling charges income

- Cost of sales
Total courier and allied services

International freight
Commission income

General and administrative expenses
Marketing and selling expenses

Operating profit

Other income
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after tax

Earning per share - basic & diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2

Note

18

19
20

21
22

23

24

2022 2021
---------- Rupees-----------
1,028,519,073 960,482,394
23,677,827 25,657,978
1,052,196,900 986,140,372
(949,271,679) (854,244,718)
102,925,221 131,895,654
46,931,273 4,567,551
1,017,607 1,740,347
150,874,101 138,203,552
(131,638,292) (86,115,471)
(4,564,750) (3,482,125)
(136,203,042) (89,597,596)
14,671,059 48,605,956
16,894,121 2,025,326
(7,821,861) (12,526,769)
9,072,260 (10,501,443)
23,743,319 38,104,513
(7,797,663) (4,883,966)
15,945,656 33,220,547
(Restated)

0.65 1.35

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Py

Director




UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
---------- Rupees-----------

Profit after taxation 15,945,656 33,220,547
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent period:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant equipment - 45,030,204
Deferred tax on property and equipment - (12,717,384)
Accelerated depreciation on property and equipment - (3,290,204)

- 29,022,616
Total comprehensive income for the year 15,945,656 62,243,163

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Fracyy Pl

Chief E;:ei:utlw;. Officer Chief Flnand. al Officer Director
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UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Note  ---------- Rupees-----------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 23,743,319 38,104,513
Adjustment for non cash changes and other items:
Depreciation - Property and equipment 18,653,080 10,487,530
Depreciation - ROUA 24,354,488 22,123,692
Allowance for expected credit losses 1,543,346 3,531,593
Amortization of Intangibles 1,333,416 -
Finance costs 22 7,821,861 12,526,769
Amortization of deferred income - -
Gain on sale of property and equipment (43,576) (1,425,762)
Cash flows from operating activities 77,405,934 85,348,335
(Increase)/ decrease in current assets
Trade debts 8 (95,432,589) (71,930,468)
Packaging Material 561,797 (2,662,889)
Short term loans and advances 9 (12,699,921) (4,744,632)
Short term deposits and prepayments 10 7,014,274 (6,898,130)
(100,556,439) (86,236,119)

(23,150,504) (887,784)
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (75,963,114) 70,841,754
Due to related parties (2,434,610) 1,234,610

(78,397,724) 72,076,364
Cash (used)/generated from operations (101,548,229) 71,188,580
Income tax paid (11,407,001) (9,016,330)
Finance cost paid (7,879,448) (12,851,275)
Net cash (used)/generated in operating activities (120,834,678) 49,320,975
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant and equipment's 4 (70,894,645) (23,391,965)
Intangibles 5 (25,429,489) (42,133,150)
Sale proceeds from property, plant and equipment 2,110,000 8,040,000
Long term deposits 7 (1,501,000) (941,050)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (95,715,134) (58,426,165)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares - net 427,612,794 104,232,824
Sponsors' loan (70,000,000) 70,000,000
Lease liability 14 (23,417,236) (11,822,803)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 334,195,558 162,410,021
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 117,645,746 153,304,831
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 76,819,150 (76,485,681)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 194,464,896 76,819,150
Cash and bank balances 25 194,464,896 76,819,150

194,464,896 76,819,150

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer




UNIVERSAL NETWORK SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1.

2.2

2.3

The Company and its operation

Universal Network Systems Limited (The Company) was incorporated as a private limited company in
Pakistan on December 12, 2005 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act,
2017). On February 18, 2021 the Company was converted to "Public Limited" under Companies Act,
2017. On December 6, 2021, the Company became listed on GEM Board of Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Bungalow No. 5, Bangalore Town, Main Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan, 74550. The principal activities of the Company are to act as a cargo forwarder,
provide domestic and international courier and allied services.

During the period, the Company increased its ordinary share capital by issuing 6,857,000 fresh shares
through Pakistan Stock Exchange. After this issue of fresh shares, the issued share capital was Rs.
274,284,300 as of June 30, 2022. Rs. 180,664,275/- was utilized from issue of fresh share as of June
30, 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The earlier financial statements of the Company, being a private limited company, were prepared in
accordance with the guidelines of ‘Revised Accounting and Financial Reporting Standard for the Small-
sized Entities (Revised AFRs for SSEs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

After the conversion of the Company from private limited to a public limited company having issued
share capital of over Rs. 200 million, the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued
by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS)
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under Companies Act, 2017
(the Act) and provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have
been followed.

There is no impact of this change on the previous financial statements, except where identified in the
respective notes to the financial statements.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value.

Presentation and functional currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee (Rs. / Rupees) which is the Company’s
functional currency. Amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded off to the
nearest of Rs. / Rupees, unless otherwise stated.



Universal Network Systems Limited

2.4 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards
requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

It also requires the management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting policies. The
estimates, judgments and associated assumptions are based on the management's experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgment made by the management in applying
accounting policies include:

(a) - Current and deferred taxation (Note 15 and 23)

(b) - Impairment (Note 3.1.1)

(c) - Provisions, commitment and contingent liabilities (Note 3.1.9 and 17.1)
(d) - Depreciation and amortization on fixed and intangible assets (Note 4.1)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

A novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) that first surfaced in China was classified as a pandemic by
the World Health Organization on 11 March 2020, impacting countries globally including Pakistan.
Government of Pakistan has taken certain measures to reduce the spread of the COVID-19 including
lockdown of businesses, suspension of flight operations, intercity movements, cancellation of major
events etc. These measures have resulted in an overall economic slowdown, disruptions to various
business and significant volatility in the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). However, currently, the
potential impacts from COVID-19 remain uncertain, including, among other things, on economic
conditions, businesses and consumers. The extent of these impacts on the Company are unclear. The
Company is conducting business with some maodifications to employee working and cancellation of
certain events, among other modifications while following all necessary Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs). The Company will continue to actively monitor the situation and may take further actions that
alter its business operations as may be required by federal, provincial or local authorities or that are in
the best interests of our employees, customers, partners, suppliers and stockholders. However, the
management based on its assessment considered that there would be no significant impact that will
adversely affect its businesses, results of operations and financial condition in future period.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

During the year certain new accounting and reporting standards / amendments / interpretations
became effective and applicable to the Company. However, such updates were not considered to be
relevant to these financial statements and accordingly the same have not been presented.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard or interpretation:



Universal Network Systems Limited

Effective date
(Annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning on or

after)
- IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments) January 01, 2023
- IAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments) January 01, 2023
- IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) January 01, 2023
- IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising January 01, 2023

from a Single Transaction (Amendments)

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Effective Date
(Annual periods

Standard or Interpretation L,
beginning on or

after)
IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current January 01, 2023
IAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single January 01, 2023

Transaction (Amendments)

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting
standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not
been presented here.

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements adopted during the period

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year ended, except as described below which are amended or recently
implemented/adopted by the Company after conversion to public limited company.

3.1.1 Fixed assets
Property and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged
to income applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified in the relevant note.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month at which asset is available for use and on disposals
no charge for the month in which asset disposed. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account
applying reducing balance method at the rate mentioned in relevant note. Full depreciation is charged
to profit or loss and the difference of accelerated depreciation is charged to statement of changes in
amihg
Normal repairs & maintenance are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements if any are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will
flow to the Company

An item of fixed assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount of relevant assets. These are included in the profit and loss account.
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Intangible Assets
Intangible assets other than goodwill and marketing related intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill and marketing related intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, as their useful life is indefinite and are tested for impairment annually. For other intangibles,
amortization is charged to the profit or loss applying the straight line method, whereby, the cost of
intangible asset is written off over its useful economic life.

The amortization rate of the intangible assets are stated in note 5 & 6 to these financial statements. Full
month's amortization is charged in the month of addition when the asset is available for use, whereas,
amortization on disposals is charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress, if any, is stated at cost (less impairment losses, if any) and represents
expenditure on fixed assets in the course of construction and installation and advances for capital
expenditure. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets when the assets are available for
intended use.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that operating fixed
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed
the respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment charge is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The recoverable amount of property and equipment is the greater of fair value less cost to sell
and value in use.

Surplus on revaluation on Property and equipment

A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset revaluation
surplus in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is
recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset
recognised in the asset revaluation surplus.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to unappropriated profit is made for the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset
being sold is transferred to unappropriated profit.

3.1.2 IFRS 9 - Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a portion of
financial asset when, and only when, the Company looses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial asset or portion of financial asset.

A financial liability or part of financial liability is derecognized from the balance sheet when, and only
when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Any gain or loss on the recognition or de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is
taken to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification
depends on the business model in which the financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows.
The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
and it evaluates this classification on a regular basis.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

Debt investment

Debt investments that dov not qualify for measurement at either amortized cost or FVOCI are classified
as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity investment

Equity investments that are held for trading, and equity investments for which the entity has not
elected to recognize fair value gains and losses through other comprehensive income are classified as
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (Provisions)

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial
assets. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company uses a simplified approach to consider
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past due over the
agreed credit terms. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Company's historical experience of actual credit losses over past years and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information. However, in certain cases, the Company may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Company.

Such assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Provision are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts and intends either to settle these on net basis or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the
counterparties.

3.1.3 Stores and Supplies
Store and Supplies including packaging materials are valued at the average cost of purchase at each
period end.Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred
thereon.
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3.1.4 Cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost and include cash in hand, at bank
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily available convertible to known amounts of
cash. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include bank balances
including short-term deposits net of book overdraft, if any.

3.1.5 Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is
based on their quoted price, without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the
market approach (i.e., using recent arm’s length market transactions adjusted as necessary and
reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same) and the
income approach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis making as much use of available and supportable
market data as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

Al a.sﬁsets' énd' Iia’bi'lities' for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (observable

inputs).
The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
year during which the change occurs.

3.1.6 Taxation

Current taxation
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
considering tax credits and rebates available, if any.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized.
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Impairment of non-financial assets other than operating fixed assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs to sell of the asset.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other fair
value indicators.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either
individually or at cumulative group level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

For such assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

3.1.7 Segment reporting

All business segments of the company are distinguishable components which are engaged in revenue
generating activities and its results are regularly reviewed by the Company. The senior
management decides to allocate the resources to the respective segment and assess its performance.
Furthermore, related financial information is available for each segment.

Based on internal management reporting structure, the Company is organized into the following
operating segments:

- Domestic Courier and Cargo
- International Freight

Management monitors the operating results of above mentioned segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resources to be allocated and assessing performance.
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3.1.8 Related party transactions
Related parties comprises of major shareholders, associated companies with or without common
directorship, other companies with common directorship, directors of the Company, key management
personnel and their close family members. The Company continues to have a policy whereby
transactions with related parties are entered into; at commercial terms, approved policy or at rate
agreed under a contract/arrangement/agreement.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The Company considers its Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Strategy Officer, Company Secretary and departmental heads to be
its key management personnel.

3.1.9 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.1.10 Staff retirement benefits
The Company operates a defined contribution plan (i.e. recognized provident fund scheme) for all its
permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 8.3% of the base salary are made to
the fund, both by the Company and by its employees. The assets of the fund are held separately under
the control of the Trustees.

Contributions made by the Company are charged to statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year.

3.1.11 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into PKR (the functional currency) using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into PKR using the exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.1.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in the normal course of business.

-Courier, cargo and allied services are recorded as and when the invoices are raised.
-Commission income is recognized on accrual basis.

-Profit on saving accounts, short term investments and other income is recognized on accrual basis
using effective interest rate method.

3.1.13 Reclassificiation of prior year presentation

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.
These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations.



- 85018V Buiso|d
- (£99y9S¥T) Jaysuel)
- LYT'SLE'6T suonippy
- - builuado
saadny 90N ssaJbo.d ui yiom jende)
TCc0¢C cecoc

%ST %ST %0€ %ST %ST %0T (%) NOILVID3¥d3A 40 3LV
9€€’€2S'0ST - 0£9’60T'6 966'STS'CT  £66'9vT'ST  98L'9v+'9T LT6'E0T LY TT0T - INNOWY SNIAWAVD
8TT'206'VL - €T/'89T°6T 9€£8'801'ST 8¥/'09T'ST S€0'Z6Y'L 96L'TL9'VT 2202 ‘0€ dunc je se aduejeg
(090760t'T) (eve’6z8) (zTrvo’eLs) (5£979) sjesodsip uo
080°€59'ST - 9bL'Tov’s TTL'SS8'E zog’'sLs’s 6C0'vLE'T T87's8€’E pouiad ay3 10y abeyd
801'859'LS - OTE'SES'YT  9ST'9CT'ST  TTTI'T6S'TT  900STT’S STS'98T'TT T20T ‘10 AInc je se aduejeg
80T'859'LS - 0TE'SES VT 9ST'9ZT'ST TCT'Z6S'TT 900'8TT’'S STS'98Z'TT TZ0T ‘0€ 3un( je se aduejeg
(bTr'eL0'c) (55/'620'¢) (699°ct) sjesodsip uQ
YELLLL'ET - 06T°'LSY'Y G95'€99°C 1L£'ST8T 08T1'2/9'T T'65h'C J1eaA ayy 1oy sbieyd
86/'€56'91 - G/8'/0T'ET 165°29v'CT €T¥'0TT'6 978'sti's £60°228'8 020z ‘10 AN 1e se sduejeg
uonepaidap pajejnwindoy
Yov'sTy'sTe - €v€'8£T'89 Z€8'¥T6'0€ SvL'Lov'oF TT8'8€6'ET €2/4'S/8'T9 2202 ‘0€ dunc je se duejeg
(¥89'SLY'€) (o6€906'T) (¥62°605'T) (000°09) sjesodsia
T90'¥80'99 - 698'598'0C vILZ'TIT'S S82'6£0'6 TIS'LTT'S T89'6£6'CT suonippy
£80°L18'T9T - ¥98'81E'61 ¢Tb'Tee've 09%'8Z¥'TE 60€'TT8'ST Zv0'9£6'8€E T20T ‘10 AIn( je se aouejeg
/80°LT8T79T - v98’s81E'6Y  TTIV'TTEYT 09+'8TH'TE 60<'TT8'ST Z¥0'9€6'8€ TZO0T ‘0€ dun( je se duejeg

(66%"9559) (66%'955'9) - - - - - 9T S¥4I Jo uoneojidde [epiul

Uo S19sse 9sN-Jo-1ybLi 01 palisseday
#02'0£0'SH - 9+5'082°0C 69'8b€'E 68€'THT’L €ST'€0C'y [¥9'556'6 snjdins uonenjeAsy
(299'£89'6) - (691'129'6) (€6+'99) sjesodsi
G96’'€H0'9T - 0000£6'S 092'T1EL'T 116'SHS’E 920"y 7€€'pE9 suonippy
6/0'/86'LTT 66+'955'9 [8Y'6TL'TE £89'ckT'61 £59'90£'0¢ $69'S0H°0T £909v£'8¢ 020z ‘10 AIn( 3e se aduejeg
1s0D
S9110SS2208 juswdinba sbumy
S9IYSA S9PIYSA pue [[Ze] TR 1) pue sainixiy juswanoiduy
Ie301 s193ndwo) pue 32310 anjuing Ployasea] uondiosaq
pasea paumoQ
S19SSY paxiq
086'8ST1'S0T 0C6'EEE'SST

- 85018V (42 ssaiboad ui 1oMm [ende)
086'851'S0T 9€€’€TS'0ST T'V S)Ossy paxid
Te0c cecoe INIWdINO3 ANV AL¥3IdOUd

Pa)IWIT SW1SAS YIOMISN [BSI2AIUN

v



Universal Network Systems Limited

4.3 Detail of disposal of property and equipment

As of Jun 30, 2022
Disposal of fixed asset during the year having written down value of more than Rs. 500,000/ is Rs. 1,077,047/ are as follows:
- . . Relationship
. Original |Accumulated| Written Sales Gain/ . Mode of
Particulars . Sold to with .
cost depreciation | down value | proceeds | (Loss) company disposal
Vehicle - SUZUKI 1,906,390 829,343 | 1,077,047 | 1,000,000 (77,047)|Third Party |None Bank
Total 1,906,390 829,343 1,077,047 1,000,000 (77,047
2022 2021
Note @ = -=--------- Rupees-----------
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software 5.1 18,657,834 17,000,000
Software under development 5.2 64,571,389 42,133,150
83,229,223 59,133,150
5.1 2021
Cost Amortization
Opening  Addition Disposal Closing |Opening C:::g‘],:;:r Disposal Closing |Book value Rate %
Software | 17,000,000 - - 17,000,000 17,000,000
2022
Cost Amortization
Opening A‘:::‘t;?:r/ t Disposal Closing |Opening c:::%:;:r Disposal Closing | Book value Rate %
Software | 17,000,000 2,991,250 - 19,991,250 - 1,333,416 - 1,333,416 | 18,657,834 6.67%
2,022 2021
5.2 Software under development Note ~ = ~-======--- Rupees-----=------
Opening 42,133,150 -
Additions 25,429,489 42,133,150
Transfer (2,991,250) -

64,571,389 42,133,150




6.1

6.2

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
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The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movement during the year

is as follows:

Net carrying value basis

Reclassified from operating fixed
assets on initial application of IFRS 16
Right-of-use assets recognised on
initial application of IFRS 16

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Closing net book value Jun 30, 2021

Addition: during the year

Less: Depreciation charge for the year
Closing net book value June 30, 2022

Depreciation rate (%)
Gross carrying value basis

Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net book value June 30, 2022

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposit against
- Utilities

- Rent

- Leased vehicles

- Others

TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured
Trade debts - unsecured

Due from related parties - Trade related
Allowances for expected credit losses

Rental

Vehicles Properties Total
---------- (Rupees)-----------
6,556,499 - 6,556,499
7,348,000 68,262,272 75,610,272
(1,194,696) (20,928,996) (22,123,692)
12,709,803 47,333,276 60,043,079
- 12,938,454 12,938,454
(1,906,470) (22,448,018) (24,354,488)
10,803,333 37,823,712 48,627,045
15% 5-Years
13,904,499 81,200,726 95,105,225
(3,101,166) (43,377,014) (46,478,180)
10,803,333 37,823,712 48,627,045
2022 2021
Note @ = ==--- Rupees-----
162,500 162,500
11,580,028 10,079,028
500,000 500,000
504,200 504,200
12,746,728 11,245,728
459,442,680 353,159,327
8.1 1,377,158 12,227,922
(5,074,939) (3,531,593)
455,744,899 361,855,656




8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

10

10.1

11
11.1

11.2
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These amounts are related to services provided by related companies.

Maximum balance at any time during the year from the related party amount to Rs. 1,744,189
(2021: Rs 12,227,992)

2022 2021
Note @ ----- Rupees-----
Aging analaysis of related party receivable
Not over due 1,377,158 12,227,922
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured,
considered good
Employees 9.1 3,137,926 2,813,640
Executives 9.1 1,832,546 676,180
Advance against services 16,470,333 5,251,064
21,440,805 8,740,884

Loans given to employees are of short term nature, for personal use and carries interest charge on
an average rate 14.75%.These are recovered on monthly basis from staff salary.

2022 2021
Note @ = -----o---- Rupees-----------
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND ADVANCE INCOME TAX
Bank guarantee margin 10.1 21,844,308 22,928,362
Prepayments 1,792,405 7,722,625
Advance tax
-Income tax 11,407,208 9,016,329
35,043,921 39,667,316

The Company has provided bank guarantee to Serene Air in respect of the cargo general sales
agency agreement.

2022 2021

Note @  ---------- Rupees-----------
SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
Held For Trading
Mutual Funds
Opening Balance - -
Add: additions to mutual funds 62,600,000 -
Add: unrealized gain on revaluation of investment 9,086,290 -
Closing Balance 11.1.1 71,686,290

Certificates of Musharaka
Modaraba Al- Mali (short term rating A2) 11.2.1 60,000,000 -

131,686,290 -




11.1.1 Mutual fund certificates

2022 | 2021

Number of Units

2022
Unit price

Name of
the entity

687,274.82 -

84,792.33 -

8,111.89 -

268,913.18 -

5,091.14 -

50.47

100.00

102.17

101.07

100.85

MCB - Arif
Habib

Faysal
Islamic
Cash Fund

Faysal

Money
Market
Fund

UBL
Liquidity
Plus
Fund(ULPF)

UBL Al-
Ameen
Islamic
Cash Plan

Universal Network Systems Limited

2,022

------- RUPEES

34,685,248

8,479,233

828,773

27,179,611

513,426

2021

71,686,290

11.1.2 Cost of Mutual fund certificates as at June 30, 2022 is Rs. 62,600,000 /-.

11.1.3 These investments represent mutual funds of various banks. These carry profit at rate of 10.41%

to 12.52%per annum (2021: NIL)

11.2.1 This amount represent investment in musharaka having tenure of 89 days. These carry profit at

rate of 6 months KIBOR+3.5%.

12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Cash at bank
- in current account
- in saving account

12.1

Note

12.1

These carry markup rates of 9.50% (2021: 5%) per anum.

13 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2022 2021
(Number of shares)

27,428,430

27,428,430 20,571,430

20,571,430 Ordinary shares of Rs.

10 each fully paid in
cash

2,022 2021
------- RUPEES -------

3,364,020 3,438,381
30,904,588 15,552,239
28,509,998 57,828,530
62,778,606 76,819,150

2,022 2021
274,284,300 205,714,300
274,284,300 205,714,300




13.1

14
14.1

14.1.1
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During the year, the Company increased its ordinary share capital by issuing 6,857,000 fresh
shares through Pakistan Stock Exchange. After this issue of fresh shares, the issued share capital
was Rs. 274,284,300 as of June 30, 2022.

2,022 2021
Note @ = -==---- RUPEES -------
LEASE LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Current maturity 25,867,487 22,187,718
Non-current 25,298,396 39,456,951
51,165,883 61,644,669
Reconciliation
Opening balance 61,644,669 5,205,200
Additions 12,938,450 74,663,072
Paid during the (23,417,236) (18,223,603)
Closing balance 51,165,883 61,644,669

14.1.2 The Company has entered into conventional lease agreement for different vehicles. Further the

15

Company has adopted requirements of IFRS 16 related to rental properties in prior year. Lease
rentals are payable on monthly basis and include finance charges are applied at the respective
discount rates applicable to different kind of transactions including Right of Use Assets. The
Company has the option to purchase vehicle upon completion of lease period and has the
intention to exercise such option. The Company has intention to continue operations from rental

properties which are currently available from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2026.

2022 2021
---------- Rupees-----------
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - Net
Deferred tax liabilities on
taxable temporary
- accelerated tax depreciation:
- Property and equipment 9,683,280 8,862,495
- right of use assets 14,101,843 13,726,650
- surplus on revaluation of plant and equipmer 6,682,948 12,717,384
- short term investment 2,635,024 -
33,103,096 35,306,529
Deferred tax assets on
deductible temporary
differences:
- trade debts 1,471,732 1,024,162
- lease liabilities 14,838,106 17,876,954
-minimum tax 4,294,150 -
20,603,988 18,901,116
12,499,107 16,405,413
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2022 2021
Note @  --=------- Rupees-----------
16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 111,882,667 195,436,648
Accrued liabilities 46,609,201 38,951,975
Advance from customers 2,205,112 1,712,308
Income tax payable 1,793,914 787,843
Sales tax payable 2,670,647 4,235,881
Workers welfare fund 602,845 602,845
165,764,386 241,727,500

17

17.1

17.2
17.2.1

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

There are no contingencies during the year (2021: Nil)

Commitments

The Company has Ijarah from various financial institutions for vehicles and those are payable till
2025. Further the company has long term rental property conrracts across the country which are

due to mature by 2026.

17.2.2 Corporate Guarantees given by the Company in favour of Serene Air (Private) Limited aggregating

18

to Rs. 18.95 million (2021: 20 million ).

COST OF SALES

Freight forwarding expenses
Operational expenses
Delivery expense

Fuel expense

Packing material
Entertainment expense
Staff salaries & other benefits
Royalty expense

Rent, rates & taxes

Repair & maintenance
Printing and stationery
Insurance

Security

Communication

Utilities

Travelling expense
Depreciation - ROUA

Note

2022 2021

---------- Rupees-----------
380,581,091 460,463,615
1,993,312 4,554,649
121,295,262 76,740,888
43,094,613 33,639,049
27,377,429 9,281,274
5,651,988 5,239,567
291,737,753 199,378,266
2,756,250 1,044,250
4,531,986 2,283,203
10,616,840 9,135,012
4,886,182 4,720,224
3,449,772 3,901,794
5,212,740 5,145,838
13,316,702 9,810,049
8,450,413 6,026,730
3,849,731 1,951,314
20,469,615 20,928,996
949,271,679 854,244,718




19

19.1

20

Note
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Allowance for expected credit losses
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Fuel

Printing and stationery

Postage and telegram

Telephone, internet and mobile charges
Electricity, gas and water charges
Entertainment

Fees and subscription

Books and periodicals

Travelling and conveyance

Auditors remuneration 19.1
Vehicle and generator maintenance
Security expense

Depreciation - PPE

Depreciation - ROUA

Amortization

Legal and professional

Note
Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee
Out of pocket expenses
SRB

MARKETING AND SELLING EXPENSES

Sales promotion
Advertisement and publicity

Universal Network Systems Limited

2022 2021
---------- Rupees-----------
69,458,116 41,720,752
8,845,084 8,306,299
1,543,346 3,531,593
1,375,678 777,277
3,802,699 1,851,891
2,075,212 2,385,078
707,318 246,963
39,405 85,807
2,794,464 876,971
7,068,314 3,644,232
2,826,601 2,147,601
1,398,789 1,537,443
17,470 16,690
2,248,930 960,921
885,000 354,000
1,036,087 4,253,508
1,159,157 801,263
18,653,080 10,487,530
1,906,470 1,194,696
1,333,416 -
2,463,656 934,956
131,638,292 86,115,471
2022 2021
---------- Rupees-----------
750,000 300,000
75,000 30,000
60,000 24,000
885,000 354,000
1,032,305 661,656
3,532,445 2,820,469
4,564,750 3,482,125
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22

23

24

25

OTHER INCOME Note

- From non-financial assets
Gain on sale of fixed assets

- From financial assets

Profit on placements
Unrealized gain on short term investment

FINANCE COSTS

Mark up on leases

Mark up on running finance
Mark up on loan from directors
Bank charges

TAXATION

Current
Prior
Deferred

EARNING PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Profit after tax for the period

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period

Earning per share - basic and diluted

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short Term Investment
Cash and bank balances

Universal Network Systems Limited

2022 2021
---------- Rupees-----------
43,576 1,425,762
7,764,255 599,564
9,086,290 -
16,894,121 2,025,326
6,906,431 6,658,776
412,303 796,317
- 4,690,686
503,127 380,990
7,821,861 12,526,769
13,984,475 (12,792,175)
(2,280,507) 4,609,640
(3,906,305) 3,298,569
7,797,663 (4,883,966)
15,945,656 33,220,547
24,685,630 24,685,630
(Restated)
0.65 1.35
131,686,290 -
62,778,606 76,819,150
194,464,896 76,819,150
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2022 2021
Note @  --—-------- Rupees-----------
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At amortised cost
Short term deposits and prepayments 23,636,713 30,650,987
Short term loans and advances 21,440,805 8,740,884
Long term deposit's 12,746,728 11,245,728
Trade debt 455,744,899 361,855,656
Cash and bank balances 62,778,606 76,819,150
576,347,751 489,312,405
Fair value through other comprehensive income
Short term Investments - -
Fair value through profit or loss
Short term Investments 131,686,290 -
708,034,041 489,312,405
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
Lease liability 51,165,883 61,644,669
Markup / interest accrued - 57,587
Accrued expenses and other payables 160,696,980 236,100,931
211,862,863 297,803,187

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk, other market price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides
principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas such as
currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's overall risk management procedures, to minimize the potential adverse effects
of financial market on the Company's performance, are as follows:

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency, interest rate, commodity price and equity price that will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
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(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future
commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign
currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to United States Dollar (USD) and Euro (EUR). Currently, the Company's foreign exchange
risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to foreign entities and foreign currency bank
balances.

At June 30, 2022, if the Rupee had weakened / strengthen by 5% against the US dollar and Euro
with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been Rs. 4,203,722
lower / higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US dollar and
Euro-denominated financial assets and liabilities.

(ii) Interest rate

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

As the Company has no significant floating interest rate assets, the Company's income is
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk
arises from short term borrowings and long term financings. These financing, issued at variable
rates, expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions
and alternative financing.

Cash flow

If interest rates at the reporting date fluctuate by 10% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been Rs. 1,226,000 lower / higher, mainly as a
result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. This analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts of liabilities outstanding at the reporting date are outstanding for the entire
year.

(iii) Other market price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company is not exposed to any market price risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Carrying amounts of financial assets represent
the maximum credit exposure.

Credit risk of the Company arises from deposits with banks, long term deposits, short term
deposits, trade receivables and other receivables. The management assesses the credit quality of
the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The
utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.



Universal Network Systems Limited

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical
performance of such assets and available external credit ratings, if any. Carrying values of financial
assets exposed to credit risk, which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

Note 2022 2021
-------- Rupees-------
Trade debts 455,744,899 361,855,656
Long term 12,746,728 11,245,728
Short term deposits and other receivables 23,636,713 30,650,987
Loans to employees 3,137,926 2,813,640
Bank balances 62,778,606 76,819,150
558,044,872 483,385,161
The aging of receivables as at reporting date is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
1 - 30 days 122,761,595 84,758,238
31 -90 days 106,224,639 109,479,391
More than 90 days 230,456,449 158,921,697
459,442,683 353,159,327

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high
credit ratings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as
its exposure is spread over a large number of counter parties and trade receivables are subject to
specific credit ceilings based on customer credit history.

The management estimates the recoverability of trade receivables on the basis of financial position
and past history of its customers based on the objective evidence that it shall not receive the
amount due from the particular customer. The provision is written off by the Company when it
expects that it cannot recover the balance due. Any subsequent repayments in relation to amounts
written off are credited directly to the statement of profit or loss.

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty
default rate:

Rating , 2022 2021

Short term | Long term Rating Agency Rupees Rupees
AL BARAKA BANK Al A+ JCR-VIS 10,457,919 6,217,763
Bank Al Falah Al+ AA+ PACRA 3,033,899 1,020,088
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 36,691 144,65
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 1,292 1,292
Meezan Bank A+ A JCR-VIS 7,650,866 6,107,174
Silk Bank Limited A2 A JCRVIS 2,842,739 2,150,968
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 4,294,961 887,457
Summit Bank - - PACRA 37412 6,733
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(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due.

The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected cash outflows during
its operating cycle, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

The Company monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing
facilities and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows.

In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in each
quarter and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet its liabilities and maintaining
debt financing plans. The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date, to the contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and also
include the impact of estimated future interest payments.

Carrying amount | Contractual cash | Within ongyear | After one year

s Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Contractual maturities of financial iabilites as at June 30, 2022;
Lease lahiie 51,165,883 51,165,883 15867487 15,298, 3%
Trade and other payables [rade credtors and accued expenses| 160,69, %0 160,69, %0 - 160,69, %0
11,862,863 211,862,863 15867487 185,999,376

Carrying amount | Contractualcash flows |~ Withinongyear |~ After one year

e Rupegs Rupegs Rupees Rupegs
Contractual maturties o financia abilties as at June 30, 2021;
Lease abiltes 61,644,669 61,044,669 0187718 39456951
Trade and offer payables [irade creftors and accrued expenses] 3610091 236,100 931 - 236,100 931
Markup accrued on runing fnance 575871 57587 57587

297803187 297803, 187 20,145,305 1155788

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the
basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at the reporting date. The rates of interest /
mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these financial statements.
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(d) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise
between the carrying value and the fair value estimates.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing
on the reporting date. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting
date. The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values.

28 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard Company's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company finances its operations through equity, management of working capital with a view
to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk.

29 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

As at June 30, Non-cash Cash Flows As at June 30,
2021 changes 2022
Rupees
Lease liabilities 61,644,669 (10,478,786) 51,165,883
61,644,669 - (10,478,786) 51,165,883

30 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVES, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

I 2022 | 2021 |
Chief Executive Ex_ecutive Executives Chief Executive Ex_ecutive Executives
Officer Director Officer Director
Rupees
Managerial Remuneratior 4,743,505 4,679,368 32,906,567 2,368,725 2,368,725 19,559,600
Allowances 1,897,390 1,871,734 13,162,557 2,131,853 2,131,853 7,823,840
Medical 474,347 467,928 3,290,657 236,873 236,873 1,955,960
Retirement Benefit - - 689,196 - - 500,930
7,115,241 7,019,029 50,048,976 4,737,451 4,737,451 29,840,330
Number of Persons 1 1 20 1 1 15

30.1 The Chief Executive and certain executives are provided with Company maintained vehicles.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, key management personnel and retirement
benefit schemes. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties. Amounts due from and to associated undertakings, executives and
remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in the relevant notes. Transactions with
related parties other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

Transactions with related parties:

Name of the related Transactions
party Relationship during the period June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees-----------
Universal Freight Systems  Common Sales of services 5,299,993 3,301,800
(Pvt.) Ltd. directorship

Purchase of services 8,892,621 16,156,680

UNS Employee's Provident  Staff Benefits  Net change in 1,379,307 1,240,706
Fund Trust Plan respect of staff

benefit plan
Directors & Executives Executives Remuneration 63,494,050 38,814,300

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

A joint provident fund is maintained by the Company. The following information is based on the
latest financials statements:

(UnAudited) (UnAudited)
Note 2022 2021
-------- Rupees-------
Size of the Funds - Total Assets 15,791,533 17,833,884
Cost of investment made 12,831,171 15,637,668
Percentage of investment as size of the fund 81% 88%

Fair value of investment 12,831,171 15,637,668



Universal Network Systems Limited

32.1 The breakup of fair value of investment is

2022 2021
Percentage Percentage
Investment asofsizeof Investment as of size
the fund of the fund
Rupees % Rupees %
Bank Balance 2,831,171 18% 4,637,668 26%
Investment in term deposit

receipts 10,000,000 63% 11,000,000 62%
12,831,171 81% 15,637,668 88%

32.2 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of Section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
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Universal Network Systems Limited

2022 2021
Note @ = ---—------- Rupees-----------
34 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees as at June 3( 112 129
Average number of factory employees during the year 126 124

35 AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue onOctober 5, 2022 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

36 RECLASSIFICATION

Corresponding figure have been reclassified for better presentation, in repect of following;

Nature of head Amount (RS) From To

Depreciation - ROUA 20,928,996 _General and Cost of sales
administrative expense

37 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

%‘A%«—J M@‘W

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director |




Pattern of Shareholding
The Companies Act, 2017 (Section 227 (2) (f)

Universal Network Systems Limited
Pattern of holding of the shares held by the Shareholders as at June 30, 2022.

Number of Shareholders | Shareholdings' Slab | Total Shares Held |
9 1 to 100 287
179 101 to 500 88,031
82 501 to 1,000 82,000
76 1,001 to 5,000 169,189
16 5,001 to 10,000 122,708
5 10,001 to 15,000 68,033
2 15,001 to 20,000 34,729
1 20,001 to 25,000 22,058
3 25,001 to 30,000 82,936
1 35,001 to 40,000 35,700
1 50,001 to 55,000 52,639
1 60,001 to 65,000 64,214
2 90,001 to 95,000 182,149
2 100,001 to 105,000 205,714
1 105,001 to 110,000 108,310
2 205,001 to 210,000 411,428
1 215,001 to 220,000 217,500
1 255,001 to 260,000 257,500
1 265,001 to 270,000 267,895
1 400,001 to 405,000 404,329
1 445,001 to 450,000 446,975
1 670,001 to 675,000 670,462
2 890,001 to 895,000 1,785,578
1 895,001 to 900,000 896,852
1 1,000,001 to 1,005,000 1,004,500
5 1,025,001 to 1,030,000 5,142,885
1 14,600,001 to 14,605,000 14,603,829

399 Total 27,428,430




Pattern of Shareholding
The Companies Act, 2017 (Section 227 (2) (f)

S.No. Categories of Shareholders Shares held  Percentage
1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and
their spouse and minor children 16,870,213 61.51%
2 Associated Companies, undertakings and
related parties. - 0.00%
3 NIT and ICP - 0.00%
4 Banks Development Financial Insititutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions. - 0.00%
5 Insurance Companies 26,049 0.09%
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 673,478 2.46%
7 Shareholders holding 10% 14,603,829 53.24%
8 General Public
a. Local 6,075,720 22.15%
b. Foreign 189,431 0.69%
9 Others 3,593,539 13.10%

Total (excluding : share holder holding 10%) 27,428,430 100%




Pattern of Shareholding
Categories of Shareholding

Disclosure Requirement under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG) as on June 30, 2022.

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
Arif Elahi 1 500 0.00%
Safina Danish Elahi 1 14,603,829 53.24%
Mirza Qamar Beg 1 500 0.00%
Asfandyar Farrukh 1 205,714 0.76%
Nadine Malik Almani 1 500 0.00%
Imran Baxamoosa 1 1,028,580 3.75%
Ali Aamer Baxamoosa 1 1,028,590 3.75%
Salman Hameed 1 2,000 0.01%
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - - 0.00%
NIT & ICP - - 0.00%
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - 0.00%
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful and pension funds
Dawood Family Takaful Limited 1 26,049 0.09%
Modaraba and Mutual Funds
Modaraba Al-Mali 1 267,895 0.98%
B.R.R. Guardian Modaraba 1 1,254 0.01%
CDC - Trustee Faysal Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 1 404,329 1.47%
General Public
a. Local 315 6,075,720 22.15%
b. Foreign 63 189,431 0.69%
Others
Roomi Enterprises (Pvt) Limited. 1 896,852 3.27%
Masood Spinning Mills Limited 1 670,462 2.44%
Trustees of Hamdard Laboratories (Wagqf) Pakistan. 1 892,789 3.26%
Maple Leaf Capital Limited 1 1,028,572 3.75%
MRA Securities Limited 1 97 0.00%
Arif Habib Limited 1 475 0.00%
Trustee-First Dawood Inv. Bank Ltd. & Other Empolyees P.Fund 1 3,219 0.01%
B. R. R. Investment (Private) Limited 1 9,024 0.03%
Sarena Textile Industries (Private) Limited 1 92,049 0.34%

Total 399 27,428,430 100.00%

Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage

Safina Danish Elahi 14,603,829 53.24%
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REQUEST FORM FOR HARD COPY OF ANNUAL AUDITED ACCOUNTS

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, vide S.R.O 470(I)/2016 dated May 31,
2016, has allowed companies to circulate their annual balance sheet, profit and loss account,
auditor’s report, directors’ report and ancillary statements/notes/documents (“Annual Audited
Accounts”) along with notice of general meeting to the registered addresses of its shareholders
in electronic form.

However, Shareholders may request a hard copy of the Annual Audited Accounts along with
notice of general meetings to be sent to their registered address instead of receiving the same in
electronic form. If you require a hard copy of the Annual Audited Accounts, please fill the
following form and send it to our Share Registrar or Company Secretary at the address given
below.

Date:

I/We request that a hard copy of the Annual Audited Accounts along
with notice of general meetings be sent to me through post. My/our particulars in this respect
are as follows:

Folio /CDC A/c No.
Postal Address:
Email Address:

Contact No:

CNIC No.

Signature

The form may be sent directly to Universal Network Systems Limited Share Registrar or
Company Secretary at the following address:

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Universal Network Systems Limited

CDC House, 99-B, Block -B, S.M.C.H.S., Plot # 5, Banglore Town, Near Awami Markaz,
Main Shahra-e-Fiasal, Karachi -74400 Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi Pakistan

Tel #: (92-21) 111-111-500 Tel: 021-111-BlueEX(258339)

Website: www.cdcpakistan.com Website: www.blue-ex.com

E-mail: info@cdcpak.com E-mail: ahsan.igbal@blue-ex.com




PROXY FORM

The Company Secretary,

Universal Network Systems Limited
Plot # 5, Banglore Town,

Near Awami Markaz, Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi.

I/We of being
member(s) of Universal Network Systems Limited holding Ordinary Shares
as Folio /CDC Account No. hereby appoint of
as my proxy to vote for me and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the company to be held at Plot No.5, Banglore Town, Near Awami Markaz,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi and through video link facility on October 28, 2022 at 04:00 p.m. and
at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2022

Witness 1

Signature

Name

CNIC No. or

Passport No.

Address Signature should agree with specimen
registered with the Company

Signature

Witness 2
Signature
Name

CNIC No. or
Passport No.
Address

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint any member as his/her proxy
to attend the meeting and vote.

= If a member is unable to attend the meeting, they may complete and sign this form and send it to
the Company Secretary, Universal Network Systems Limited at the registered office Plot # 5,
Banglore Town, Near Awami Markaz, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi so as to reach not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

= For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met.

(i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be stated on the form.

(if) Scanned copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
submitted with the proxy form.

(iii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with
proxy form.
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